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Preface

As humanity welcomes the new century, :
economics as a science and as a subject

continues to be central to concerns

around the globe. The twentieth century

witnessed a spectacular change in the liv-

ing standards of most of the world, particu-

larly those in the affluent countries of North
America, Western Europe, and East Asia. While the
first half of the century was marked by two world
wars and one great depression, the last half has been
one of virtually uninterrupted growth of living stan-
dards and the spread of free markets, democracy,
and personal freedoms to many corners of the globe.
The central question for the years ahead is, “Will the
good fortune spread from the affluent minority to
the poor majority?”

Fifty Years of Economics
Over the past two decades, there have been dramatic
changes in both attitudes and in economic institu-
tions. Dozens of countries have rejected socialist and
collectivist approaches and adopted market systems.
Strong economic growth has been experienced in
countries as diverse as Ireland, Botswana, and the
Philippines. At no time in recorded history have so
many enjoyed such a sustained period of economic
growth as they have during the Great Peace of the
past half century.

You might think that prosperity would lead to a
declining interest in economic affairs, but paradox-
ically, an understanding of the enduring truths of
economics has become even more vital in the affairs
of people and nations. The United States grappled
with slow growth in living standards and large gov-
ernment budget deficits; but by the turn of the cen-
tury budget deficits had turned to surpluses, pro-
ductivity growth turned up, and real incomes were
increasing at a healthy pace.

In the larger scene, the world has become in-
creasingly interconnected as computers and com-
munications create an ever-more-competitive global
marketplace. Developing countries and countries
like Russia and Poland, all of which are trying to de-
velop the institutions of mature capitalism, need a
firm understanding of the institutions of a market
economy if they are to attain the living standards of
the affluent. At the same time, there is growing con-
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cern about international environmental
problems and the need to forge agree-
ments to preserve our precious natural
heritage. All these fascinating changes
are part of the modern drama that we call
economics.

Fifty Years of ECONOMICS
For more than half a century, this book has served
as the standard bearer for the teaching of introduc-
tory economics in classrooms in America and
throughout the world. Each new edition has distilled
the best thinking of economists about how markets
function and about what society can do to improve
people’s living standards. But economics has
changed profoundly since the first edition of this text
appeared in 1948. And because economics is above
all a living and evolving organism, the need to keep
Economics at the frontier in the rapidly evolving world
economy affords the authors an exciting opportu-
nity to present the latest thinking of modern econ-
omists and to show how the subject can contribute
to a more prosperous world.

Our task then is this: We want to present a clear,
accurate, and interesting introduction to the princi-
ples of modern economics and to the institutions of
the American and world economies. Our primary
goal is to survey economics, and in doing this we em-
phasize the basic economic principle that will endure
beyond today’s headlines.

THE SEVENTEENTH EDITION

Economics is a dynamic science—changing to re-
flect the shifting trends in economic affairs, in the
environment, in the world economy, and in society
at large. As economics and the world around it
evolve, so does this book. These nine features dif-
ferentiate this edition from other books:

I. The Core Truths of Economics. Often, economics
appear to be an endless procession of new puzzles,
problems, and difficult dilemmas. But as experi-
enced teachers have learned, there are a few basic
concepts that underpin all of economics. Once these
basic concepts have been mastered, learning is much
quicker and more enjoyable. We have therefore chosen
to focus on the central core of economics—on those endur-
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ing truths that will be just as important in the twenty-first
century as they were in the twentieth. Microeconomic
concepts such as scarcity, efficiency, the gains from
specialization, and the principle of comparative ad-
vantage will be crucial concepts as long as scarcity it-
self exists. Moreover students of macroeconomics
must receive a firm grounding in the concepts of ag-
gregate supply and demand and must understand
the role of national and international monies. Stu-
dents will learn the widely accepted theory of eco-
nomic growth, but they should also understand the
controversial theories of the business cycle.

2. Innovation in the Economy. One of the striking
features of the modern economy is the rapidity of in-
novations in virtually every sector. We are accus-
tomed to the dizzying speed of invention in com-
puters, where new products and software appear
monthly. The Internet is revolutionizing communi-
cations and making inroads into commerce.
Nowhere in recorded history do we find such a
rapid rate of improvement as has been seen for
computers over the past three decades. But other sec-
tors are also witnessing rapid innovation—we run in
athletic equipment made of miraculous new materi-
als and relax while listening to music from crystal-
clear audio equipment. Our understanding of eco-
nomic trends and policies must reflect this rapid
change in our societies.

Economics is increasingly attentive to rapid in-
novation. In macroeconomics, new growth theories
emphasize the importance of technology, invention,
and human capital in the growth process. In micro-
economics, we have included a new section on the
economics of information, showing how externalities
in the production of information and new tech-
nologies lead to market failures. And a case study of
the economics of the Internet explores the dilem-
1 mas of pricing information.
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3. Innovation in Economics. In addition, we empha-
size innovations in economics itself. Economists are
tinkerers, innovators, and inventors in their own way.
History shows that economic ideas can produce tidal
waves when they are applied to real-world problems.
Among the important innovations studied here is the
application of economics to our environmental prob-
lems through “emissions trading” plans. Other im-
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portant economic innovations discussed are im-
proved regulatory mechanisms and the radical new
step of European monetary unification. One of the
most influential economic innovations of the last few
years involves the measurement of consumer prices.
We introduce the important notion of “network eco-
nomics” and show how it affects economic efficiency
and market power, and how it has entered into the
debate about breaking up Microsoft. One of the most
important innovations for our common future is
dealing with global public goods like climate change,
and we analyze new approaches to dealing with in-
ternational environmental problems such as the
Kyoto Protocol.

4. Small Is Beautiful. Economics has increased its
scope greatly over the past half-century. The flag of
economics flies over its traditional territory of the
marketplace, but it also covers the environment, le-
gal studies, statitiscal and historical methods, art,
gender and racial discrimination, and even family
life. But at its core, economics is the science of
choice, which means that we, as authors, have to
choose the most important and enduring issues for
this text. In a survey, as in a meal, small is beautiful
because it is digestible.

Choosing the subjects for this text required many
hard choices. To select these topics, we continually
survey teachers and leading scholars to determine
the ones most crucial for an informed citizenry and
a new generation of economists. We drew up a list
of key ideas and bid adieu to many appendices and
sections. At every stage, we asked whether the material was,
as best we could judge, necessary for a student’s under-
standing of the economics of the twenty-first century. Only
when a subject passed this test was it included. The
result of this campaign is a book that has lost more
than one-quarter of its weight in the last two editions.
Farming, labor unions, and Marxian economics have
been trimmed to make room for environmental eco-
nomics, network economics, and real business cycles.

5. Policy Issues at Century’s Dawn. Each generation
of economists finds new challenges to contend with in
the attempt to understand evolving economic policy
problems. Two areas that have been at the forefront
of economics in the past decade have received ex-
panded treatment in the seventeenth edition. As hu-
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man societies grow, they begin to overwhelm the en-
vironment and ecosystems of the natural world. Envi-
ronmental economics, presented in Chapter 18, helps
students understand the externalities associated with
economic activity and then analyzes different ap-
proaches to making human economies compatible
with natural systems. A second important area is in-
ternational economics. We have completely reorgan-
ized our treatment of international economics by in-
tegrating the theory of comparative advantage into the
microeconomics sections while reorganizing and re-
structuring the macroeconomic sections. The new or-
ganization will allow students to get an appreciation of
the global economy at an earlier stage in their studies.

6. The Incredible Shrinking Globe. A century ago,
the leading military strategist of the age, Captain
A. T. Mahan, declared in his important book The In-
fluence of Sea Power on History, “Whether they will or
no, Americans must now begin to look outward.”
President William Jefferson Clinton echoed these
words when he wrote about economic affairs, “There
is simply no way to close our borders and return to
the insular days. To try to do so would be an exer-
cise in futility, doomed not only to fail but to lower
living standards in the process.”

Americans are learning that no nation is an is-
land. Immigration and international trade have pro-
found effects on the goods that are available, the
prices we pay, and the wages we earn. Labor econo-
mists have found that the surge of uneducated im-
migrants over the last two decades has been an im-
portant contributor to the declining real wages of
unskilled workers. Development economists have
found striking results regarding the impact of eco-
nomic openness on economic growth. No complete
understanding of modern economics is possible
without a thorough grounding in the world econ-
omy. The seventeenth edition continues to increase
the material devoted to international economics and
the interaction between international trade and do-
mestic economic events.

7. Advances in Modern Macroeconomics. One of
the major obstacles to understanding modern eco-
nomics is the proliferation of contesting schools of
macroeconomics. Teachers often wonder how stu-
dents can understand the subject when macroecon-
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omists themselves are so divided. While many fret
about the divisiveness of modern macroeconomics,

‘we think it is a sign of health and prefer lively de-

bate to complacent consensus.

The seventeenth edition analyzes all major
schools of modern macroeconomics within the clear
organizing synthesis of aggregate supply and de-
mand. We show how macroeconomics of the Keyne-
sian, old and new classical, supply-side, and mone-
tarist varieties can be understood as emphasizing
different aspects of expectations, market clearing,
and aggregate demand. Each school is clearly pre-
sented and compared with its competitors in a bal-
anced and evenhanded way. For each, the empirical
evidence is presented and evaluated. The major
schools are presented in a chapter entitled “The War-
ring Schools of Macroeconomics.” But we also em-
phasize the importance of the policy implications of
the different approaches. And we also have reor-
ganized and integrated the open-economy issues into
the core chapters.

Although much macroeconomic combat is de-
voted to arguing about the sources of the business
cycle, one of the major recent developments in eco-
nomics has been the resurgence of attention to the
forces underlying long-run economic growth. Econ-
omists are increasingly examining the determinants
of long-run economic growth, the slowdown and re-
cent rebound in productivity growth, and the gen-
eration of innovation and new technological knowl-
edge. Putting economic growth front and center is
necessary if students are to understand modern de-
bates about the role of government debt and deficits.
The seventeenth edition reflects this revival by syn-
thesizing growth theories and findings into the cen-
tral section on macroeconomics. We include growth
theory as an integral part of aggregate supply and
potential output and have revised and moved the
chapter on economic development to follow the ma-
terial on economic growth theory.

8. Emphasis on History and Policy. Students study
economics to understand the rapidly changing world
around them. For this reason, economics is at its core
an empirical science. It first aims to explain the world
around us and then helps us devise economic policies,
based on sound economic principles, that can enhance
the living standards of people at home and abroad.
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Drawing upon history, economic chronicles, and
the experience of the authors, the seventeenth edi-
tion continues to emphasize the use of case studies
and empirical evidence to illustrate economic theo-
ries. The dilemmas involved in combating poverty
become real when we understand the 1996 welfare
reforms or the problems of the current health-care
system. Our appreciation of macroeconomic analy-
sis increases when we see how government deficits
in the 1980s lowered national saving and how the
current budget surpluses are increasing national sav-
ing. Macroeconomics can help explain the American
economic miracle of the late 1990s.

The microeconomic chapters draw upon case
studies, economic history, business decisions, and
real-world experience to illustrate the fundamental
principles. Examples such as network economics, the
Microsoft antitrust case, the flat tax, and the Kyoto
Protocol on global warming, the economics of ad-
dictive substances, the minimum-wage debate, trad-
ing pollution permits, and the history of stock mar-
kets help bring the theorems of microeconomics to
life. Game theory becomes serious—and has striking
implications—when applied to pollution or winner-
take-all games.

This “hands-on” approach to economics allows
students to understand better the relevance of eco-
nomic analysis to real-world problems. The abstract
notion of scarcity becomes concrete when we see its
implications for whether we have a good job, a
healthy environment, adequate health care, and a se-
cure nest egg for our retirement.

9. Clarity. Although there are many new features in
the seventeenth edition, the pole star for our pil-
grimage in preparing this edition has been to pre-
sent economics clearly and simply. Students enter the
classroom with a wide range of backgrounds and with
many preconceptions about the way the world works.
Our role is not to change their values, but to help
them to understand the enduring economic princi-
ples and then to be able to apply them to make the
world a better place for them, their families, and
their communities. Nothing aids understanding bet-
ter than clear, simple exposition. We have labored
over every page to improve this survey of introduc-
tory economics. We have received thousands of com-
ments and suggestions from teachers and students
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and have incorporated their counsel in the seven-
teenth edition.

Optional Matter
Economics courses range from one-quarter surveys to
year-long intensive honors courses. This textbook has
been carefully designed to meet all situations. The
more advanced materials have been put in separate ap-
pendices or specially designated sections. These will
appeal to curious students and to students in de-
manding courses that survey the entire discipline thor-
oughly. We have included advanced questions for dis-
cussion to test the mettle of the most dedicated student.

If yours is a fast-paced course, you will appreci-
ate the careful layering of the more advanced mate-
rial. Hard-pressed courses can skip the advanced sec-
tions, covering the core of economic analysis without
losing the thread of the economic reasoning. This
book will challenge the most advanced young
scholar. Indeed, many of today’s leading economists
have written to say they’ve relied upon Economics all
along their pilgrimage to the Ph.D.

Format

The seventeenth edition employs a greatly expanded
set of in-text logos and material to help illustrate the
central topics. You will find three distinctive logos:
warnings for the fledgling economist, examples of
economics in action, and biographical material on
the great economists of the past and present. But
these central topics are not drifting off by themselves
in unattached boxes. Rather, they are integrated
right into the chapters so that students can read them
without breaking their train of thought. Keep these
logos in mind as you read through the text:

is a warning that students should pause to en-
sure that they understand a difficult or sub-
tle point.

is an interesting example or application of
the analysis, and often it represents one of the
major innovations of modern economics.

presents biographies of important economic
figures. Sometimes these are famous econo-
mists like Adam Smith, while at other times
they are people who introduced economics
into public policy.




New features in this edition include fresh end-of-
chapter questions, with a special accent upon short
problems that reinforce the major concepts surveyed in
the chapter. Terms printed in bold type in the text mark
the first occurrence and definition of the most impor-
tant words that constitute the language of economics.

But these many changes have not altered one bit
the central stylistic beacon that has guided Econom-
ics since the first edition: to use simple sentences,
clear explanations, and concise tables and graphs.

For Those Who Prefer Macro First
Although, like the previous edition, this new edition
has been designed to cover microeconomics first,
many teachers continue to prefer beginning with
macroeconomics. They may think that the beginning
student finds macro more approachable and will
more quickly develop a keen interest in economics
when the issues of macroeconomics are encountered
first. We have taught economics in both sequences
and find both work well.

Whatever your philosophy, this text has been
carefully designed for it. Instructors who deal with
microeconomics first can move straight through the
chapters. Those who wish to tackle macroeconomics
first should skip from Part One directly to Part Five,
knowing that the exposition and cross-references
have been tailored with their needs in mind.

In addition, for those courses that do not cover
the entire subject, the seventeenth edition is avail-
able in two paperback volumes, Microeconomics
(Chapters 1 to 19 of the full text) and Macroeconom-
ics (Chapters 1 to 3 and 20 to 34 of the full text).

Auxiliary Teaching and Study Aids
Students of this edition will benefit greatly from the
Study Guide. This carefully designed supplement was
prepared by Kathryn Nantz and Laurence Miners of
Fairfield University who worked in close collabora-
tion with us in our revision. When used alongside
classroom discussions and when employed inde-
pendently for self-study, the Study Guide has proved
to be an impressive success. There is a full-text Study
Guide, as well as micro and macro versions.

In addition, instructors will find both the In-
structor’s Resource Manual and the Test Bank useful for
planning their courses and preparing multiple sets
of test questions in both print and computerized for-
mats. Moreover, McGraw-Hill/Irwin has designed a
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beautiful set of two-color overhead transparencies for
presenting the tabular and graphical material in the
classroom. The graphs and figures in this edition can
also be viewed electronically as PowerPoint slides.
The slides can be downloaded from our website
(www. mhhe.com/economics/samuelson). The web-
site also contains self-grading, practice quizzes, in-
teractive diagrams of key graphs, and the websites
suggested for further research found at the end of
each chapter. These items can all be obtained by con-
tacting your local McGraw-Hill/Irwin sales repre-
sentative.

Economics in the Computer Age
The electronic age has revolutionized the way that
scholars and students can access information. In eco-
nomics, the information revolution allows us quick
access to economic statistics and research. An im-
portant feature of the seventeenth edition is the sec-
tion “Economics and the Internet,” which appears
just before Chapter 1. This little section provides a
road map for the state of economics on the Infor-
mation Superhighway.

In addition, each chapter has a new section at
the end with suggestions for further reading and a
set of websites that can be used to deepen student
understanding or find data and case studies.

Students can also purchase The Power of Macro-
economics and The Power of Microeconomics, which con-
tain lessons directly tied to this text. These programs
are lively combinations of PowerPoints with audio de-
signed to reinforce economics concepts. They allow
students to move at their own pace and engage stu-
dents with questions during the presentation. The
Power of Macroeconomics and The Power of Microeco-
nomics were developed by Peter Navarro at the Uni-
versity of California at Irvine, Graduate School of
Management. A complete description of this sup-
plement can be found at www.powerofeconomics.
com.
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A WORD TO THE SOVEREIGN
STUDENT

You have read in the history books of revolutions that
shake civilizations to their roots—religious conflicts,
wars for political liberation, struggles against colo-
nialism and imperialism. A decade ago, economic
revolutions in Eastern Europe, in the former Soviet
Union, in China, and elsewhere tore those societies
apart. Young people battered down walls, overthrew
established authority, and agitated for democracy
and a market economy because of discontent with
their centralized socialist governments.

Students like yourselves are marching, and even
going to jail, to win the right to study radical ideas
and learn from Western textbooks like this one in
the hope that they may enjoy the freedom and eco-
nomic prosperity of democratic market economies.

The Intellectual Marketplace
Just what is the market that students in repressed
societies are agitating for? In the pages that follow,
you will learn about the markets for stocks and
bonds, Mexican pesos and European Euros, un-
skilled labor and highly trained neurosurgeons.
You have probably read in the newspaper about the
gross domestic product, the consumer price index,
the stock market, and the unemployment rate. Af-
ter you have completed a thorough study of the
chapters in this textbook, you will know precisely
what these words mean. Even more important, you
will also understand the economic forces that in-
fluence and determine them.

There is also a marketplace of ideas, where con-
tending schools of economists fashion their theories
and try to persuade their scientific peers. You will
find in the chapters that follow a fair and impartial
review of the thinking of the intellectual giants of
our profession—from the early economists like
Adam Smith, David Ricardo, and Karl Marx to
modern-day titans like John Maynard Keynes, Milton
Friedman, and Robert Solow.
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Skoal!
As you begin your journey into the land of mar-
kets, it would be understandable if you are some-
what anxious. But take heart. The fact is that we
envy you, the beginning student, as you set out to
explore the exciting world of economics for the
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first time. This is a thrill that, alas, you can expe-
rience only once in a lifetime. So, as you embark,
we wish you bon voyage!

Paul A. Samuelson
William D. Nordhaus




For the Student: Economics and the Internet

The Information Age is revolutionizing

our lives. The impact on scholars and

students has been particularly profound

because it allows inexpensive and rapid

access to vast quantities of information.

The Internet, which is a huge and growing

public network of linked computers and infor-
mation, is changing the way we study, shop, share
our culture, and communicate with our friends and
family.

In economics, the Internet allows us quick access
to economics statistics and research. With just a few
clicks of a mouse, we can find out about the most
recent unemployment rate, track down information
on poverty and incomes, or investigate the intrica-
cies of our banking system. A few years ago, it might
have taken weeks to dig out the data necessary to an-
alyze an economic problem. Today, with a computer
and a little practice, that same task can be done in
a few minutes.

This book is not a manual for driving on the In-
formation Superhighway. That skill can be learned
in classes on the subject or from informal tutorials.
Rather, we want to provide a road map that shows
the locations of economic data and research. With
this map and some rudimentary navigational skills,
you can explore the various sites and find a rich ar-
ray of data, information, studies, and chat rooms.

This introduction provides an overview of the In-
ternet and describes some of the most important
websites in economics. Additionally, at the end of
each chapter there is a list of useful websites that
can be used to follow up the major themes of that
chapter.

Note that some of these sites may be free, some
may require a registration or be available through
your college or university, and others may require
paying a fee. Pricing practices change rapidly, so
while we have attempted to include primarily free
sites, we have not excluded high-quality sites that
may charge during 2000.

Data and Institutions. The Internet is an indispen-
sable source of useful data and other information.
Since most economic data are provided by govern-
ments, the first place to look is the Web pages of gov-
ernment agencies and international organizations.
The starting point for U.S. government statistics,

- www.fedstats.gov, provides onestop

~ shopping for Federal statistics with links

to over 70 government agencies that

produce statistical information. Sources

are organized by subject or by agency, and

the contents are fully searchable. Another

good launching site into the federal statistical

system is the Economic Statistics Briefing Room at

www.whitehouse.gov/fsbr/ esbr.html.  Additionally,

the Commerce Department operates a huge data-

base at www.stat-usa.gov, but use of parts of this data-

base requires a subscription (which may be available

at your college or university). A portal for govern-

ment data in many sectors can be found at

www.lib.umich.edu/libhome/Documents.center/stats.
html.

The best single statistical source for data on the
United States is The Statistical Abstract of the United
States, published annually. It is available online at
www.census.gov/statab/www. If you want an overview
of the U.S. economy, you can read The Economic Re-
port of the President at w3.access.gpo.gov/eop and
www.whitehouse.gov/WH/EOP/CEA/html/inclex.
html.

Most of the major economic data is produced by
specialized agencies. One place to find general
data is the Department of Commerce, which en-
compasses the Bureau of Economic Analysis
(BEA) (www.bea.doc.gov) and the Census Bureau
(www.census.gov). The BEA site includes all data and
articles published in the Survey of Current Business,
including the national income and product ac-
counts, international trade and investment flows,
output by industry, economic growth, personal in-
come and labor series, and regional data.

The Census site goes well beyond a nose count
of the population. It also includes the economic
census as well as information on housing, income
and poverty, government finance, agriculture, for-
eign trade, construction, manufacturing, trans-
portation, and retail and wholesale trade. In addi-
tion to making Census publications available, the
Census site allows users to create custom extracts
of popular microdata sources including the Survey
of Income and Program Participation, Consumer
Expenditure Survey, Current Population Survey,
American Housing Survey, and, of course, the most
recent census.




The Bureau of Labor Statistics (at www.bls.gov)
provides easy access to commonly requested labor
data, including employment and unemployment,
prices and living conditions, compensation, produc-
tivity, and technology. Also available are labor-force
data from the Current Population Survey and pay-
roll statistics from the Current Employment Statistics
Survey. :

A useful source for financial data is the web-
site of the Federal Reserve Board at www.
federalreserve.gov. This site provides historical U.S.
economic and financial data, including daily inter-
est rates, monetary and business indicators, ex-
change rates, balance-of-payments data, and price in-
dices. In addition, the Office of Management and
Budget at www.gpo.gov/usbudget/index.html makes
available the federal budget and related documents.

International statistics are often harder to find.
The World Bank at www.worldbank.org has infor-
mation on its programs and publications at its site,
as does the International Monetary Fund, or IMF
at www.imf.org. The United Nations website (www.
unsystem.org) is slow and confusing but has links to
most international institutions and their databases.
Another good source of information about high-
income countries is the Organisation for Economic
Cooperation and Development, or OECD, at
www.oecd.org. The OECD’s website contains an ar-
ray of data on economics, education, health, science
and technology, agriculture, energy, public manage-
ment, and other topics.

Economic Research and Journalism. The Internet is
rapidly becoming the world’s library. Newspapers,
magazines, and scholarly publications are increas-
ingly posting their writing in electronic form. Most
of these present what is already available in the pa-
per publications. Some interesting sources can be
found at the Economist at www.economist.com and
The Financial Times (www.ft.com). The Wall Street Jour-
nal at www.wsj.com is currently expensive and not
recommended. Current policy issues are discussed
at www.policy.com. The online magazine Slale at
www.slate.com occasionally contains excellent essays
in economics.

For scholarly writings, many journals are mak-
ing “their contents available online. WebEc at
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www.helsinki.fi/WebEc contains a listing of websites
for many economic journals. The archives of many
journals are available at www.jstor.org.

There are now a few websites that bring many
resources together in one place. One place to start
is Resources for Economists on the Internet, sponsored
by the American Economic Association and edited
by Bill Goffe at www.rfe.org. Also see WWW Resources
in Economics, which has links to many different
branches of economics at netec.wustl.edu/WebEc/
WebEc.html. Another site with much entertain-
ing and useful information is www.economics.
miningco.com/finance/economics. These sites also
offer a comprehensive list of links to economics jour-
nals. For working papers, the National Bureau of Eco-
nomic Research (NBER) website at www.nber.org
contains current economic research. The NBER site
also contains general resources, including links to
data sources and the official U.S. business-cycle dates.

An excellent site that archives and serves as a
depository for working papers is located at
econwpa.wustl.edu/wpawelcome.html. This site is
particularly useful for finding background material
for research papers.

Did someone tell you that economics is the
dismal science? You can chuckle over economist
jokes (mostly at the expense of economists) at
www.netec.wustl.edu/JokEc.html.

A Word of Warning. Note that, because of rapid tech-
nological change, this list will soon be out of date.
New sites with valuable information and data are ap-
pearing every day. ..and others are disappearing al-
most as rapidly.

Before you set off into the wonderful world of
the Web, we would pass on to you some wisdom from
experts. Remember the old adage, you only get what
you pay for:

Warning: Be careful to determine that your
sources and data are reliable. The Internet and
other electronic media are notoriously easy to
use and equally easy to abuse.

The Web is the closest thing in economics to a free
lunch. But you must select your items carefully to en-
sure that they are palatable and digestible.
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